

FY2014 Amendments [P.L. 113-76] are in **RED**  
FY2015 Amendments [P.L. 113-235] are in **BLUE**  
FY2016 Amendments [P.L. 114-113] are in **GREEN**  
FY2017 Amendments [P.L. 115-31] are in **ORANGE**  
FY2018 Amendments [P.L. 115-141] are in **PURPLE**  
FY2022 Amendments [P.L. 117-103] are in **PINK**  
FY2024 Amendments [P.L. 118-42] are in **BROWN**

**Ramseyer for the “Rental Assistance Demonstration” as set forth in the  
Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations Act, 2012<sup>1</sup>**

**Approved November 18, 2011**

**(P.L. 112-55<sup>2</sup> as amended by P.L. 113-76, P.L. 113-235, P.L. 114-113, P.L. 115-31, P.L. 115-141, P.L. 117-103, and P.L. 118-42)<sup>3</sup>**

---

<sup>1</sup> Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations Act, 2012, Division C—Transportation, Housing and Urban Development, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2012, Title II, Department of Housing and Urban Development, “Rental Assistance Demonstration”, Pub. L. No. 112-55, 125 Stat. 552, 673-675 (November 18, 2011) <https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-112publ55/pdf/PLAW-112publ55.pdf>

<sup>2</sup> “Rental Assistance Demonstration”, as amended and codified at 42 U.S.C. § 1437f note.

<sup>3</sup> Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2014, Division L—Transportation, Housing and Urban Development, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2014, Title II, Department of Housing and Urban Development, § 239, Pub. L. No. 113-76, 128 Stat. 5, 635 (approved January 17, 2014) <https://www.congress.gov/113/plaws/publ76/PLAW-113publ76.pdf>

Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations Act, 2015, Division K—Transportation, Housing and Urban Development, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2015, Title II, Department of Housing and Urban Development, § 234, Pub. L. No. 113-59, 128 Stat. 2130, 2757, 2758 (December 16, 2014) <https://www.congress.gov/113/plaws/publ235/PLAW-113publ235.pdf>

Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016, Division L—Transportation, Housing and Urban Development, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2016, Title II, Department of Housing and Urban Development, § 237, Pub. L. No. 114-113, 129 Stat. 2897 (December 18, 2015) <https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-114publ113/pdf/PLAW-114publ113.pdf>

Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2017, Division K—Transportation, Housing and Urban Development, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017, Title II, Department of Housing and Urban Development, § 239, Pub. L. No. 115-31, 131 Stat. 135 (May 5, 2017) <https://www.congress.gov/115/bills/hr244/BILLS-115hr244enr.pdf>

Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2018, Division L—Transportation, Housing and Urban Development, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2018, § 237, Pub. L. No. 115-141, 132 Stat. 348 (March 23, 2018) <https://www.congress.gov/115/bills/hr1625/BILLS-115hr1625enr.pdf>

Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2022; Division L—Transportation, Housing and Urban Development, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2022, § 236, Pub. L. No. 117-103, 136 Stat. 49 (March 15, 2022) <https://www.congress.gov/117/plaws/publ103/PLAW-117publ103.pdf>

Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2024; Division F—Transportation, Housing and Urban Development, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2024, Title II Department of Housing and Urban Development § 221, Pub. L. No. 118-42 (March 9, 2024) <https://www.congress.gov/118/bills/hr4366/BILLS-118hr4366enr.pdf>

FY2014 Amendments [P.L. 113-76] are in RED  
FY2015 Amendments [P.L. 113-235] are in BLUE  
FY2016 Amendments [P.L. 114-113] are in GREEN  
FY2017 Amendments [P.L. 115-31] are in ORANGE  
FY2018 Amendments [P.L. 115-141] are in PURPLE  
FY2022 Amendments [P.L. 117-103] are in PINK  
FY2024 Amendments [P.L. 118-42] are in BROWN

To conduct a demonstration designed to preserve and improve public housing and certain other multifamily housing through the voluntary conversion of properties with assistance under section 9 of the United States Housing Act of 1937, (hereinafter, “the Act”), or the moderate rehabilitation program under section 8(e)(2) of the Act (~~except for funds allocated under such section for single room occupancy dwellings as authorized by title IV of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act~~), to properties with assistance under a project-based subsidy contract under section 8 of the Act, which shall be eligible for renewal under section 524 of the Multifamily Assisted Housing Reform and Affordability Act of 1997, or assistance under section 8(o)(13) of the Act, the Secretary may transfer amounts provided through contracts under section 8(e)(2) of the Act or under the headings “Public Housing Capital Fund” ~~and~~ “Public Housing Operating Fund”, and “Public Housing Fund” to the headings “Tenant-Based Rental Assistance” or “Project-Based Rental Assistance” (herein the ‘First Component’):

[1] *Provided*, That the initial long-term contract under which converted assistance is made available may allow for rental adjustments only by an operating cost factor established by the

Secretary, and shall be subject to the availability of appropriations for each year of such term:

[2] *Provided further*, That project applications may be received under this demonstration until September 30, ~~2015 2018 202020242029~~:

[3] *Provided further*, That any increase in cost for “Tenant-Based Rental Assistance” or “Project-Based Rental Assistance” associated with such conversion in excess of amounts made available under this heading shall be equal to amounts transferred from “Public Housing Capital Fund” and “Public Housing Operating Fund” or other account from which it was transferred:

[4] *Provided further*, That not more than ~~60,000 185,000 225,000~~ 455,000 units currently receiving assistance under section 9 or section 8(e)(2) of the Act shall be converted under the authority provided under this heading:

[5] *Provided further*, That at properties with assistance under section 9 of the Act requesting to partially convert such assistance, and where an event under section 18 of the Act occurs that results in the eligibility for tenant protection vouchers under section 8(o) of the Act, the Secretary may convert the tenant protection voucher assistance to assistance under a project-based subsidy contract under section 8 of the Act, which shall be eligible for renewal under section 524 of the Multifamily Assisted Housing Reform and Affordability Act of 1997, or assistance under section 8(o)(13) of the Act, so long as the property meets any additional requirements established by the Secretary to facilitate conversion:

[6] *Provided further*, That to facilitate the conversion of assistance under the previous proviso, the Secretary may transfer an amount equal to the total amount that would have been allocated

FY2014 Amendments [P.L. 113-76] are in RED  
FY2015 Amendments [P.L. 113-235] are in BLUE  
FY2016 Amendments [P.L. 114-113] are in GREEN  
FY2017 Amendments [P.L. 115-31] are in ORANGE  
FY2018 Amendments [P.L. 115-141] are in PURPLE  
FY2022 Amendments [P.L. 117-103] are in PINK  
FY2024 Amendments [P.L. 118-42] are in BROWN

for tenant protection voucher assistance for properties that have requested such conversions from amounts made available for tenant protection voucher assistance under the heading “Tenant-Based Rental Assistance” to the heading “Project-Based Rental Assistance”:

[7] *Provided further*, That at properties with assistance previously converted hereunder to assistance under the heading “Project-Based Rental Assistance,” which are also separately assisted under section 8(o)(13) of the Act, the Secretary may, with the consent of the public housing agency and owner, terminate such project-based subsidy contracts and immediately enter into one new project-based subsidy contract under section 8 of the Act, which shall be eligible for renewal under section 524 of the Multifamily Assisted Housing Reform and Affordability Act of 1997, subject to the requirement that any residents assisted under section 8(o)(13) of the Act at the time of such termination of such project-based subsidy contract shall retain all rights accrued under section 8(o)(13)(E) of the Act under the new project-based subsidy contract and section 8(o)(13)(F)(iv) of the Act shall not apply:

[8] *Provided further*, That to carry out the previous proviso, the Secretary may transfer from the heading “Tenant-Based Rental Assistance” to the heading “Project-Based Rental Assistance” an amount equal to the amounts associated with such terminating contract under section 8(o)(13) of the Act:

[95] *Provided further*, That tenants of such properties with assistance converted from assistance under section 9 shall, at a minimum, maintain the same rights under such conversion as those provided under sections 6 and 9 of the Act:

[106] *Provided further*, That the Secretary shall select properties from applications for conversion as part of this demonstration through a competitive process:

[117] *Provided further*, That in establishing criteria for such competition, the Secretary shall seek to demonstrate the feasibility of this conversion model to recapitalize and operate public housing properties (1) in different markets and geographic areas, (2) within portfolios managed by public housing agencies of varying sizes, and (3) by leveraging other sources of funding to recapitalize properties:

[128] *Provided further*, That the Secretary shall provide an opportunity for public comment on draft eligibility and selection criteria and procedures that will apply to the selection of properties that will participate in the demonstration:

[139] *Provided further*, That the Secretary shall provide an opportunity for comment from residents of properties to be proposed for participation in the demonstration to the owners or public housing agencies responsible for such properties:

FY2014 Amendments [P.L. 113-76] are in **RED**  
FY2015 Amendments [P.L. 113-235] are in **BLUE**  
FY2016 Amendments [P.L. 114-113] are in **GREEN**  
FY2017 Amendments [P.L. 115-31] are in **ORANGE**  
FY2018 Amendments [P.L. 115-141] are in **PURPLE**  
FY2022 Amendments [P.L. 117-103] are in **PINK**  
FY2024 Amendments [P.L. 118-42] are in **BROWN**

[1410] *Provided further*, That the Secretary may waive or specify alternative requirements for (except for requirements related to fair housing, nondiscrimination, labor standards, and the environment) any provision of section 8(o)(13) or any provision that governs the use of assistance from which a property is converted under the demonstration or funds made available under the headings of “Public Housing Capital Fund”, “Public Housing Operating Fund”, “Public Housing Fund”, “Self-Sufficiency Programs”, “Family Self-Sufficiency” and “Project-Based Rental Assistance”, under this Act or any prior Act or any Act enacted during the period of conversion of assistance under the demonstration for properties with assistance converted under the demonstration, upon a finding by the Secretary that any such waivers or alternative requirements are necessary for the effective conversion of assistance under the demonstration or the ongoing availability of services for residents:

[1511] *Provided further*, That the Secretary shall publish by notice in the Federal Register any waivers or alternative requirements pursuant to the previous proviso no later than 10 days before the effective date of such notice:

[1612] *Provided further*, That the demonstration may proceed after the Secretary publishes notice of its terms in the Federal Register:

[1713] *Provided further*, That notwithstanding sections 3 and 16 of the Act, the conversion of assistance under the demonstration shall not be the basis for re-screening or termination of assistance or eviction of any tenant family in a property participating in the demonstration, and such a family shall not be considered a new admission for any purpose, including compliance with income targeting requirements:

[1814] *Provided further*, That in the case of a property with assistance converted under the demonstration from assistance under section 9 of the Act, section 18 of the Act shall not apply to a property converting assistance under the demonstration for all or substantially all of its units, the Secretary shall require ownership or control of assisted units by a public or nonprofit entity except as determined by the Secretary to be necessary pursuant to foreclosure, bankruptcy, or termination and transfer of assistance for material violations or substantial default, in which case the priority for ownership or control shall be provided to a capable public or nonprofit entity, then a capable entity, as determined by the Secretary, shall require long-term renewable use and affordability restrictions for assisted units, and may allow ownership to be transferred to a for-profit entity to facilitate the use of tax credits only if the public housing agency preserves its interest or a nonprofit entity preserves an interest in the property in a manner approved by the Secretary, and upon expiration of the initial contract and each renewal contract, the Secretary shall offer and the owner of the property shall accept renewal of the contract subject to the terms and conditions applicable at the time of renewal and the availability of appropriations each year of such renewal:

FY2014 Amendments [P.L. 113-76] are in **RED**  
FY2015 Amendments [P.L. 113-235] are in **BLUE**  
FY2016 Amendments [P.L. 114-113] are in **GREEN**  
FY2017 Amendments [P.L. 115-31] are in **ORANGE**  
FY2018 Amendments [P.L. 115-141] are in **PURPLE**  
FY2022 Amendments [P.L. 117-103] are in **PINK**  
FY2024 Amendments [P.L. 118-42] are in **BROWN**

[1945] *Provided further*, That the Secretary may permit transfer of assistance at or after conversion under the demonstration to replacement units subject to the requirements in the previous proviso:

[2046] *Provided further*, That the Secretary may establish the requirements for converted assistance under the demonstration through contracts, use agreements, regulations, or other means:

[2147] *Provided further*, That the Secretary shall assess and publish findings regarding the impact of the conversion of assistance under the demonstration on the preservation and improvement of public housing, the amount of private sector leveraging as a result of such conversion, and the effect of such conversion on tenants:

~~[1819] *Provided further*, That for fiscal years 2012 and 2013 through December 31, 2014 for fiscal year 2012 and hereafter, owners of properties assisted under section 101 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1965, section 236(f)(2) of the National Housing Act, or section 8(e)(2) (except for funds allocated under such section for single room occupancy dwellings as authorized by title IV of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act) of the United States Housing Act of 1937, for which an event after October 1, 2006 has caused or results in the termination of rental assistance or affordability restrictions and the issuance of tenant protection vouchers under section 8(o) of the Act or with a project rental assistance contract under section 202(c)(2) of the Housing Act of 1959, shall be eligible, subject to requirements established by the Secretary, including but not limited to the subordination, restructuring, or both, of any capital advance documentation, including any note, mortgage, use agreement or other agreements, evidencing or securing a capital advance previously provided by the Secretary under section 202(c)(1) of the Housing Act of 1959 as necessary to facilitate the conversion of assistance while maintaining the affordability period and the designation of the property as serving elderly persons, and tenant consultation procedures and agreement of the administering public housing agency, for conversion of assistance available for such vouchers or assistance contracts to assistance under a long term project based subsidy contract under section 8 of the Act, which shall have a term of no less than 20 years, with rent adjustments only by an operating cost factor established by the Secretary, which shall be eligible for renewal under section 524 of the Multifamily Assisted Housing Reform and Affordability Act of 1997 (42 U.S.C. 1437f note), or, subject to agreement of the administering public housing agency, to assistance under section 8(o)(13) of the Act, to which the limitation under subsection (B) of section 8(o)(13) of the Act shall not apply and for which the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development may waive or alter the provisions of subparagraphs (C) and (D) of section 8(o)(13) of the Act (herein the ‘Second Component’):~~

FY2014 Amendments [P.L. 113-76] are in **RED**  
FY2015 Amendments [P.L. 113-235] are in **BLUE**  
FY2016 Amendments [P.L. 114-113] are in **GREEN**  
FY2017 Amendments [P.L. 115-31] are in **ORANGE**  
FY2018 Amendments [P.L. 115-141] are in **PURPLE**  
FY2022 Amendments [P.L. 117-103] are in **PINK**  
FY2024 Amendments [P.L. 118-42] are in **BROWN**

~~[2248]~~ *Provided further, That conversions of assistance under the following provisos herein shall be considered as the 'Second Component' and shall be authorized for fiscal year 2012 and thereafter:*

~~[2319]~~ *Provided further, That owners of properties assisted under section 101 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1965, section 236(f)(2) of the National Housing Act, or section 8(e)(2) of the United States Housing Act of 1937, for which an event after October 1, 2006 has caused or results in the termination of rental assistance or affordability restrictions and the issuance of tenant protection vouchers under section 8(o) of the Act shall be eligible, subject to requirements established by the Secretary, for conversion of assistance available for such vouchers or assistance contracts to assistance under a long term project-based subsidy contract under section 8 of the Act:*

~~[2420]~~ *Provided further, That owners of properties with a project rental assistance contract under section 202(c)(2) of the Housing Act of 1959 shall be eligible, subject to requirements established by the Secretary, including but not limited to the subordination, restructuring, or both, of any capital advance documentation, including any note, mortgage, use agreement or other agreements, evidencing or securing a capital advance previously provided by the Secretary under section 202(c)(1) of the Housing Act of 1959 as necessary to facilitate the conversion of assistance while maintaining the affordability period and the designation of the property as serving elderly persons, and tenant consultation procedures, for conversion of assistance available for such assistance contracts to assistance under a long term project-based subsidy contract under section 8 of the Act:*

~~[25]~~ *Provided further, That owners of properties with a senior preservation rental assistance contract under section 811 of the American Homeownership and Economic Opportunity Act of 2000 (12 U.S.C. 1701q note), shall be eligible, subject to requirements established by the Secretary as necessary to facilitate the conversion of assistance while maintaining the affordability period and the designation of the property as serving elderly families, and tenant consultation procedures, for conversion of assistance available for such assistance contracts to assistance under a long-term project-based subsidy contract under section 8 of the Act:*

~~[2621]~~ *Provided further, That owners of properties with a project rental assistance contract under section 811(d)(2) of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act, shall be eligible, subject to requirements established by the Secretary, including but not limited to the subordination, restructuring, or both, of any capital advance documentation, including any note, mortgage, use agreement or other agreements, evidencing or securing a capital advance previously provided by the Secretary under section 811(d)(2) of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act as necessary to facilitate the conversion of assistance while maintaining the affordability period and the designation of the property as serving persons with disabilities,*

FY2014 Amendments [P.L. 113-76] are in **RED**  
FY2015 Amendments [P.L. 113-235] are in **BLUE**  
FY2016 Amendments [P.L. 114-113] are in **GREEN**  
FY2017 Amendments [P.L. 115-31] are in **ORANGE**  
FY2018 Amendments [P.L. 115-141] are in **PURPLE**  
FY2022 Amendments [P.L. 117-103] are in **PINK**  
FY2024 Amendments [P.L. 118-42] are in **BROWN**

and tenant consultation procedures, for conversion of assistance contracts to assistance under a long term project-based subsidy contract under section 8 of the Act:

~~[2722]~~-Provided further, That long term project-based subsidy contracts under section 8 of the Act which are established under this Second Component shall have a term of no less than 20 years, with rent adjustments only by an operating cost factor established by the Secretary, which shall be eligible for renewal under section 524 of the Multifamily Assisted Housing Reform and Affordability Act of 1997 (42 U.S.C. 1437f note), or, subject to agreement of the administering public housing agency, to assistance under section 8(o)(13) of the Act, to which the limitation under subsection (B) of section 8(o)(13) of the Act shall not apply and for which the Secretary may waive or alter the provisions of subparagraphs (C) and (D) of section 8(o)(13) of the Act:

~~[192328]~~ Provided further, That contracts provided to properties converting assistance from section 101 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1965 or section 236(f)(2) of the National Housing Act located in high-cost areas shall have initial rents set at comparable market rents for the market area:

~~[2429]~~-Provided further, That the Secretary may waive or alter the requirements of section 8(c)(1)(A) of the Act for contracts provided to properties converting assistance from section 202(c)(2) of the Housing Act of 1959, section 811 of the American Homeownership and Economic Opportunity Act of 2000, or section 811(d)(2) of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act as necessary to ensure the ongoing provision and coordination of services or to avoid a reduction in project subsidy:

~~[202530]~~ Provided further, That conversions of assistance under the Second Component may not be the basis of re-screening or termination of assistance or eviction of any tenant family in a property participating in the demonstration and such a family shall not be considered a new admission for any purpose, including compliance with income targeting:

~~[19212631]~~ Provided further, That amounts made available under the heading ‘Rental Housing Assistance’ during the period of conversion under the previous proviso, ~~which may extend beyond fiscal year 2016 as necessary to allow processing of all timely applications,~~ shall be available for project based subsidy contracts entered into pursuant to the previous proviso the Second Component, except for conversion of section 202 project rental assistance contracts, shall be available for project-based subsidy contracts entered into pursuant to the Second Component:

~~[20222732]~~ Provided further, That amounts, including contract authority, recaptured from contracts following a conversion under the previous two provisos the Second Component, except for conversion of section 202 project rental assistance contracts, are hereby rescinded and an amount of additional new budget authority, equivalent to the amount rescinded is hereby appropriated, to remain available until expended for such conversions:

FY2014 Amendments [P.L. 113-76] are in **RED**  
FY2015 Amendments [P.L. 113-235] are in **BLUE**  
FY2016 Amendments [P.L. 114-113] are in **GREEN**  
FY2017 Amendments [P.L. 115-31] are in **ORANGE**  
FY2018 Amendments [P.L. 115-141] are in **PURPLE**  
FY2022 Amendments [P.L. 117-103] are in **PINK**  
FY2024 Amendments [P.L. 118-42] are in **BROWN**

~~[21232833]~~ *Provided further*, That the Secretary may transfer amounts made available under the heading ‘Rental Housing Assistance’, amounts made available for tenant protection vouchers under the heading ‘Tenant-Based Rental Assistance’ and specifically associated with any such conversions, and amounts made available under the previous proviso as needed to the account under the ‘Project-Based Rental Assistance’ heading to facilitate conversion under ~~the three previous provisos~~ the Second Component, except for conversion of section 202 project rental assistance contracts, and any increase in cost for ‘Project-Based Rental Assistance’ associated with such conversion shall be equal to amounts so transferred:

~~[242934]~~ *Provided further*, That the Secretary may transfer amounts made available under the heading ~~Housing for the Elderly~~ headings ‘Housing for the Elderly’ and ‘Housing for Persons with Disabilities’ to the accounts under the headings ‘Project-Based Rental Assistance’ or ‘Tenant-Based Rental Assistance’ to facilitate ~~any section 202 project rental assistance contract or section 811 project rental assistance contract conversions~~ the conversion of assistance from section 202(c)(2) of the Housing Act of 1959, section 811 of the American Homeownership and Economic Opportunity Act of 2000, or section 811(d)(2) of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act under the Second Component, and any increase in cost for ‘Project-Based Rental Assistance’ or ‘Tenant-Based Rental Assistance’ associated with such conversion shall be equal to amounts so transferred:

~~[2022253035]~~ *Provided further*, That ~~with respect to the previous proviso~~, with respect to the previous four provisos the Comptroller General of the United States shall conduct a study of the long-term ~~impact of the previous proviso~~ impact of the fiscal year 2012 and 2013 conversion of tenant protection vouchers to assistance under section 8(o)(13) of the Act on the ratio of tenant-based vouchers to project-based vouchers.